
         

 

 

WALNUT CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

BROWARD COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 17, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 
Miami, FL 33024 

www.walnutcreekcdd.org 
786.347.2711 ext. 2011 Telephone 

877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

AGENDA 
WALNUT CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Walnut Creek Clubhouse 
 7500 NW 20th Street Pembroke Pines, Florida 33024 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
October 17, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 

A. Call to Order 
B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 
D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 
F. Approval of Minutes  

1. September 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes……………………………………………..................Page 2 

G. Administrative Matter 
1. Financial Update………………………………………………………………………………………………Page 20 

2. Accept and Receive Annual Engineer’s Report………………………………………………………………Page 31 

H. New/Additional Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget………................Page 56 

2. Caltran Engineering Design Plans for the Taft Visitor Entrance Trap Modification………………………...Page 61 

3. Allstate Resource Management 5 Year Re-Certification Inspection Results & Report……………………...Page 62 

4. Iguana Control Reports……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 63 

5. Update on HOA Pavilion Stucco Repairs and Paint Proposal  

6. Consider Approval of Regions Est. 2023-1082 for Refurbishing of Damaged Dualbeam 
        Barcode Reader…………………………………………………………………………………….................Page 55 

7. Consider Approval of Regions Est. 2023-1083 for High-Def Tag Reader Camera at Taft Street 
        Resident Entrance……………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 64 

8. Consider Approval of Regions Est. 2023-1084 for High-Def Tag Reader Camera at Sheridan 
        Street Resident Entrance………………………………………………………………………………………Page 65 

9. Review Proposals for Security Gate Maintenance Services TABLED till next Scheduled Meeting 

10. Region’s Security Gate System Maintenance/Repairs Spreadsheet………………………………………….Page 67 

11. Update on the HOA Monument Maintenance Agreement 

12. Consider Approval of Taft Entrance Median Light Post Replacement………………………………………Page 71 

I. Security Systems/Services  
1. Security Report………………………………………………………………………………….…................Page 73 

2. Security Administrator Status Update 

J. Old Business 
K. Additional Staff Updates/Requests  

1. Attorney 

a. District Counsel Update on the 2023 Required Ethics Training………………………………...............Page 75 

2. District Manager 

L. Additional Board Member/Public Comments 
M. Adjourn  

www.walnutcreekcdd.org 



Publication Date
2023-10-06

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

WALNUT CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Walnut Creek Community Development District
will hold Regular Meetings at 6:00 p.m. at the Walnut Creek Community Clubhouse, 7500 NW 20th Street,
Pembroke Pines, Florida 33024 on the following dates:
October 17, 2023
January 16, 2024
March 19, 2024
April 16, 2024
May 21, 2024
June 18, 2024
August 20, 2024
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board. Meetings are open to the
public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. Copies of the Agendas for any
of the meetings may be obtained by contacting the District Manager at 786-347-2711 Ext. 2011 and/or toll
free at 1-877-737-4922, �ve (5) days prior to the date of the particular meeting.
There may be occasions when one or two Supervisors will participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the discussions
taking place. Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a time and place speci�ed on the record.
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these meetings,
such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure that a verbatim record
of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record includes the testimony and evidence
on which the appeal is based.
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special
accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the District Manager
at 786-347-2711 Ext. 2011 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the
particular meeting.
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.
WALNUT CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
www.walnutcreekcdd.org
10/6 25-25/0000686577B

Page 1



 
 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 
 

WALNUT CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager, Gloria Perez, called the September 19, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Walnut 
Creek Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Walnut Creek 
Clubhouse located at 7500 NW 20th Street, Pembroke Pines, Florida 33024. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the 
Broward Daily Business Review on November 3, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mrs. Perez determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum, and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: Chairperson Betty Ross, Vice Chairperson Elina Levenson and 
Supervisors Allan Beckman, Zalman Kagan and Igor Fateyev. 
  
Staff in attendance included: District Manager Gloria Perez of Special District Services, Inc.; General 
Counsel Ginger Wald of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.; and District Engineer Stephen 
C. Smith. 
 
Also present were the following:   
 
Liza Smoker with Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
Jerome Holston, Walnut Creek HOA, Violations Coordinator/Security Administrator 
Cliff Cole, Walnut Creek HOA, Property Manager 
Brian Ruiz of Regions Security  
Juan Calderon of Caltran Engineering 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA. 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  August 15, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes from the August 15, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting were presented for 
consideration.   

Page 2



 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 
 

 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Levenson, seconded by Supervisor Ross and unanimously passed 
approving the minutes of the August 15, 2023, Public Hedaring & Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Financial Update 
 
As is procedurally done, Financial Reports were presented in the meeting book and reviewed: Monthly 
Financial Report-Operating Fund (actual revenues and expenditures with fund balances and availability); 
Check Registers; Balance Sheet; Debt Service Profit and Loss YTD Comparisons/Report(s); 
Tax/Assessment Collections; Expenditure Recap. Available Funds as of August 31, 2023, reflect 
$2,494,144.19. 
 
A motion of ratification of the financials or any further discussion was requested. 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Levenson, seconded by Supervisor Beckmann and passed 
unanimously ratifying and approving the financials, as presented. 
 
H. NEW/ADDITIONAL BUSINESS  
 1.  Caltran Engineering Presentation, Gate Trap Analysis Report & Recommendation 
 
Mr. Calderon provided a handout attached hereto and a detailed presentation on the same.  He noted that 
an approximate 10 second delay should be expected with the installation of a trap at the visitor entrance, 
thereby making it an acceptable option for consideration and that said study that has been conducted is a 
requirement for permitting/project approval. 
 
The Board requested detailed plans to be produced and for a “Reduce Speed” flashing light to be added 
in between the entrances.  
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding CBWCD Notice and Requirements 
 
Presented in the meeting book was the CBWCD Stormwater Certification Report documents as forwarded 
to the District. The Board reviewed the guidelines presented on Page 25 of the meeting book as well as 
the related information and CBWCD provided list of re-certification companies. 
 
 3.  Consider Proposal for 5-Year Re-Certification Inspection Services 
 
Two proposals were submitted: one from CAS and the other from Allstate Resource Management. 
Supervisor Kagan stated that he would prefer to have Allstate Resource Management conduct the 
inspection and re-certification because it would be a more cost-effective option, assisting the District in 
being proactive and to remain in compliance with the requirements with the 5-Year Re-Certification. 
Supervisor Levenson agreed with Mr. Kagan. 
 
Supervisor Fateyev arrived at approximately 6:16 p.m. 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Kagan, seconded by Supervisor Levenson and passed unanimously 
approving the proposal from Allstate Resource Management for the 5-Year Re-Certification Inspection 

Page 3



 
 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 
 

Services, as presented; and further authorizing District Counsel to prepare the agreement and for District 
management to execute same.  
 
 4.  Discussion Regarding Previously Tabled Proposals for CCTV and Cleaning Related to 3-
Year Action Plan and CBWCD Approval to Comply with 5-Year Certification and District 
Engineer Opinion 
 
As directed by the Board, presented in the meeting book were the requested proposals for the CCTV and 
Cleaning Related to the Three-Year Action Plan and CBWCD Approval to Comply with the 5-Year 
Certification and the District Engineer Opinion. 
 
To recap, in order for the District to request an extension on the required CBWCD 5-Year Certification, 
they are requiring that the District provide an approved agreement with a contractor.  
 
Presented in the meeting book were the project specifications prepared by CAS, followed by the CAS 
recommendation letter and Bid Cost Evaluation Report and lastly, the proposals. 
 

 
This item was tabled until further notice. 
 
 5.  Iguana Control Reports 
 
The Iguana Control Reports were presented in the meeting book and a total of 95 iguanas were removed 
from District property between August 1st and 31st, 2023. 
 
 6.  Consider HOA Pavilion Stucco Repairs and Paint Proposal 
 
HOA Pavilion Stucco Repairs and Paint Proposal Number 400, dated September 18, 2023, was provided 
via handout by Mr. Cole. 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Kagan, seconded by Supervisor Levenson and passed unanimously 
approving the HOA proposal dated September 18, 2023, in the amount of $1,750 for the Pavilion stucco 
repairs and paint, as presented. 
 
  7.  Consider Regions Est./Change Order 2023-1735 for Pedestrian Gate Access Control 
System Repair 
 
The original $1,800 has not been paid.  Mr. Riverso reduced the amount by $923.50, which was noted and 
detailed in an email that was presented in the meeting book. 
 
Mr. Riverso joined via phone, addressed the Board’s questions and provided confirmation that the 
referenced Gate Access Control System had the capability of accessing via the application within 10 feet 

Page 4



 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 
 

of the gate via Bluetooth and it also has the capability of scheduling the doors access. The Board asked 
that he provide a proposal for the same services at the other pedestrian gate. 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Kagan, seconded by Supervisor Fateyev and passed unanimously 
approving the Regions’ Est./Change Order 2023-1735 for the Pedestrian Gate Access Control System 
Repair, as presented. 
 
 8.  Consider Regions’ Est. 2023-1017 for Dualbeam Barcode Reader 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Fateyev, seconded by Supervisor Beckmann and passed 
unanimously approving the Regions’ Est. 2023-1017 proposal dated August 24, 2023, in the amount of 
$6,210 for the Dualbeam Barcode Reader, as presented. 
 
Supervisor Fateyev asked for an estimate to be prepared for repairing/refurbishing of the damaged barcode 
reader for Board consideration at a future meeting. 
 
 9.  Consider Amendment to Gate Facilities Rule Increasing Cost of Fees and Authorizing the 
Setting of a Public Hearing 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Levenson, seconded by Supervisor Fateyev and unanimously 
passed approving the scheduling of a Public Hearing on the Amendment thereby increasing the cost of the 
fees on the District’s Gate Facilities Rule to $1,000 and setting a Public Hearing for January 16, 2024. 
 
Supervisor Levenson requested that District management create a ongoing list of security gate system 
repairs to be updated moving forward and for said list to include details on the location, type of repair, 
date and cost. 
 
  10.  Review Proposals for Security Gate Maintenance Services  
 
The Board reviewed the presented proposals for Security Gate Maintenance Services and directed District 
management to seek services from more local service providers with overnight service capabilities. 
 
  11.  Consider Proposal for Quarterly Trimming of Palms near the Taft Waterfalls 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Levenson, seconded by Supervisor Ross and passed unanimously 
approving the Wolfer Landscape Services’ Estimate No. 1296-TT, dated August 25, 2023, in the amount 
of $1,200 quarterly and/or on an as needed basis; and further authorizing District Counsel to prepare an 
agreement and for District management to execute same. 
 
  12.  Consider HOA Changes to Monument Maintenance Agreement 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Fateyev, seconded by Supervisor Beckmann and passed 
unanimously approving the HOA Counsel redline changes, in substantial final form and with a change to 
the payment process; thereby authorizing District Counsel to finalize the agreement and for District 
management to execute on behalf of the District. 
 
I. SECURITY SYSTEMS/SERVICES 
 1.  Security Report 

Page 5



 
 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 
 

 
The report was provided in the meeting book for the Board’s review. 
 
 2.  Security Administrator Updates & Reports 
  a. Activity Report 
 
The report was presented in the meeting book for the Board’s review. Mr. Ruiz went over the presented 
data and added that training had been given to the staff as to the use of the handheld device and noting 
that more residents were using the app. 
 
  b. Invoice Report 
 
The Invoice Report was presented in the meeting book for Board review. 
 
  c.  Incident Report 
 
The report was presented in the meeting book for Board review. 
 
  3.  Gate Arm Damage – July 21, 2023 – J. Kilpatrick 
 
Per Jerome’s report: 
 
JERRY KILPATRICK - TAFT STREET VISITOR GATE 7/21/23 
 
On August 29, 2023 I received a letter and a vehicle damage estimate from resident 
Jerry Kilpatrick of 2180 NW 74th Ave., Willows Reach who stated that their car 
was damaged by the Taft Street visitor’s gate arm on July 21st. Unfortunately I was 
unable to pull video from that date to observe this incident. The letter and estimate 
are attached. 
 
The Board reviewed the request in detail and the claim was denied. No further actions are to be taken. 
 
Mr. George recommended that the Board consider creating a criteria. A discussion ensued and Mr. George 
will confirm if it needs to be a policy or rule. 
 
  4.  Gate Arm Damage – August 16, 2023 – F. Mohammed 
 
Per Jerome’s report email that was forwarded to the Board of Supervisors and Staff in advance of this 
evening's meeting allowing for the information to be reviewed and for the video footage to be seen:  
 
FARHAN ADAM MOHAMMED - TAFT STREET RESIDENT ENTRY 8/16/2023 
 
At around 3:30 p.m. on the above mentioned date, a black Dodge Durango driven 
by Farhan Adam Mohammed from 2186 NW 75th Way, Maple Glen entered the 
first resident gate on Taft Street. When the second gate open slightly the driver 
started moving forward and the gate arm dropped back down onto the hood of the 
vehicle. This was identified as a gate malfunction and caused damage to the vehicle. 
See attached video as well as a copy of the damage estimate. 
 

Page 6



 
 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 
 

T - Entrance Gates_2023_08_16_3PM_02_21.mp4 - Google Drive 

 
Mr. Holston asked to have this line time added to the agenda because this driver is disputing the invoice 
that was issued. 

 
The Board viewed the footage and it was clear that this was not a malfunction and that this individual hit 
the gate arm.  Claim denied, the invoice stands. 
 
  5.  Gate Arm Damage – August 28, 2023 – C. Brzostowicki 
 
Per Jerome’s report email that was forwarded to the Board of Supervisors and Staff in advance of this 
evening's meeting allowing for the information to be reviewed and for the video footage to be seen: 
CATHERINE BRZOTOWICKI - SHERIDAN RIGHT ENTRY GATE 8/28/2023 
 
On the above mentioned date at around 10:45 p.m., a black Jeep, Tag# HNQR19 driven by a resident at 
7622 NW 19th Street, Park South hit and forced open the right entry gate on Sheridan Street. See attached 
video. An invoice was sent to the resident at that address but resident is now disputing. 
 
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/syyxffyz7z49mu9yau6dm/S-Entrance-
Gates_2023_08_28_10PM_44_45.mkv?rlkey=gouwbvl4h2glcnycfnp2c41xl&dl=0 
 
Video clearly shows the vehicle driving up to the gate and pushing it open. Claim denied, the invoice 
stands. 
 
  6.  Gate Arm Damage – August 9, 2023 – L. Berkowitz 
 
Per Jerome’s report email that was forwarded to the Board of Supervisors and Staff in advance of this 
evening's meeting allowing for the information to be reviewed and for the video footage to be seen: 
 
LEEOR BERKOWITZ - SHERIDAN ENTRY 8/9/2023 
 
On the above mentioned date at around 4:53 p.m. a white work van driven by 
resident Leeor Berkowitz from 7322 NW 18th Ct. Mahogany Bend, ran into and 
damaged the left resident gate arm on Sheridan Street. See attached video. 
Resident was invoiced for the damage but is now disputing. 
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/dvjzfbz255womoi/AACd29EymPW5k3e0RgfjiBRia/W
alnut%20Creek%20Sheridan%20St%20080923%201653%20Gate%20arm%20ha
s%20been%20knocked%20down%20WC.mkv?dl=0 
 
The resident used a handheld barcode to access the Sheridan entrance gate, which is not acceptable.  
 
Mr. Cole is looking into having this barcode deactivated. 
 
Claim denied, the invoice stands. 
 
  7.  Discussion Regarding Reimbursement of Previous Gate Arm Damages of June 2, 2023, at 
3:00 p.m. to L. Lucinski’s Vehicle and Regions’ Response 
 
Mr. Rivero forwarded an email that was provided via handout: 

Page 7



 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 
 

From: crivero regionssecurity.com <crivero@regionssecurity.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 2:29 PM 
To: Gloria Perez <gperez@sdsinc.org>; Jerome Holston <jholston@campbellproperty.com> 
Cc: Walnut Creek <walnutcreekfla@comcast.net>; Ronald Galvis <rGalvis@sdsinc.org>; Gabrielle 
Vitucci <gvitucci@sdsinc.org>; bruiz@RegionsSecurity.us; Jose Rubio (jrubio@regionssecurity.us) 
<jrubio@regionssecurity.us>; walnutcreek@regionssecurity.us 
Subject: RE: GATE ARM DAMAGE ON JUNE 2, 2023 3:00P - LORI LUCINSKI 
 
Hello Gloria, 
 
I am writing to bring your attention back to my email dated July 18th and a that was presented during the 
last board meeting. To ensure a comprehensive understanding of the situation, I kindly request that the 
board reevaluates the incident. 
 
As outlined in my previous correspondence and reiterated during the board meeting, it is crucial to 
consider that the driver had ample time to wait for the gates to close, thus potentially preventing the 
incident in question. The sign prominently displayed clearly states that the gates close after each vehicle, 
reinforcing the importance of driver responsibility. 
 
To facilitate your reevaluation, I urge all board members to view the video footage, accessible via the link 
provided below. Upon reviewing the video, they will observe that the driver did not make any attempt to 
come to a complete stop and wait for the gates to close properly. Additionally, the footage demonstrates 
that the second gate began closing approximately 6-8 feet before the vehicle entered it. 
 
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/qgh61efw8a57msqtlzvxn/WC-Entrance-
Gates_2023_06_02_3PM_11_15.mkv?dl=0&rlkey=yb3jxkv75ghcfh6o1ppy8oywe 
 
Given these compelling visuals and the clear violation of gate procedures by the driver, I respectfully 
submit that Regions Security and the CDD should not be held liable for the incident. 
 
I believe that a second review of this incident will provide a more accurate understanding of the situation, 
and I encourage the Board to consider the evidence presented in the video as part of the decision-making 
process. 
 

 

Page 8



 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 
 

 
   
Cordially, 

 
Carlos Rivero, Jr. 
U.S. Army Veteran 
President & CEO 
 
Regions Security Services, Inc. 
1100 NW 72nd Ave 
Miami, FL 33126 
www.RegionsSecurity.us 
(305) 517-1266 – Ext. 105 
(877) 505-7774 – Toll Free 
(305) 517-1267 – Fax 
crivero@RegionsSecurity.us 
 
Security Guards | Front Desk Personnel | Virtual Guards | Technology | CCTV & Access Control | Gate 
Systems | Security Assessments & Training 
 

A lengthy discussion ensued between the Board and Mr. Riveros that was on the phone. 
 
Mr. Rivero did not challenge that the guard did not follow the protocol and also expressed his willingness 
to accept responsibility for the damages, followed by recommending that the Board request multiple 
estimates. 
 
Mr. George was asked to look into the indemnification clause of the agreement and to forward a letter to 
Regions on this matter. 
 
 8.  Henry White Vehicle Damages 
 
 

Page 9



 
 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 

Mr. White provided information for an incident that damaged his vehicle, inclusive of two estimates. No 
footage was made available for said incident.  
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Fateyev, seconded by Supervisor Kagan and passed unanimously 
approving payment to Mr. White pursuant to the estimate from JM Lexus Certified Collision Center, dated 
August 2, 2023, in the amount of $2,342.93, and further authorizing District Counsel to prepare a Mutual 
Waiver of Release of Claims. 
 
Mr. Ruiz of Regions was asked to look into upgrading the video footage storage for a minimum of 60 
days. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS  
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
K. ADDITIONAL STAFF UPDATES/REQUESTS 
 1.  Attorney 
 
There was no report at this time. 
 
  2.  District Manager 
 
There was no report at this time. 
 
L. ADDITIONAL BOARD MEMBER/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Regions was asked to provide a proposal for a high definition tag camera for the Taft Resident entrance 
and for the Sheridan exit. 
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board a MOTION was made by Supervisor Ross, 
seconded by Supervisor Levenson and passed unanimously adjourning the meeting at 8:43 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
Secretary /Assistant Secretary    Chairman/Vice-Chair 

Page 10



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

Walnut Creek 
Gate Trap Study

CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

Page 11



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

PRESENTATION AGENDA

• Background
• Data Collection

• Results
• Conclusion & Recommendations

• Conceptual Design 

Page 12



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

Background

• Caltran was retained to analyze the outcome

of implementing a Gate Trap System at the

main gate house of Walnut Creek Community.

• Palm Gardens at Doral in Miami-Dade County

was selected as a surrogate gated community

for a comparable service rate and time.

Page 13



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

DATA COLLECTION

• The maximum vehicles observed
using the visitors main entrance was
76 vehicles per hour (vph).

• A conservative average service time
of 60 seconds (Service Rate 60 vph)
for visitors under gate trap conditions
was selected in order to evaluate the
expected queue length.

* Results obtained from SYNCHRO 11 and SimTraffic .

Page 14



Taft Street
N

W
 7

6t
h

A
ve

420ft
Visitors

Page 15



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

Results

Queue analysis results show that the overall 95th percentile queue length is
expected to reach 346 feet long, less than the available storage distance of 420 feet
measured from the intersection on Taft Street to the Walnut Creek Guard House.

Page 16



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

Construction Cost Estimate

Based on the proposed 
improvements, the construction 
cost of the gate trap is estimated 
to be around $ 25,303.

Page 17



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

Conclusion & Recommendations

Based on the gate trap operation analysis performed during the development of this
report, the following conclusions and recommendations were determined:

Current data collection at the gate system shows a total of 204 vehicles ingress
through the main community access along NW 76th Avenue, out of which 76 were
visitors’ vehicles.
The queue analysis for the future conditions indicates that by including a gate trap
the existing storage available (420 feet) will be able to contain the 95th percentile
(346 feet) stacking length expected upon implementation.

Page 18



CALTRAN Engineering Group, INC.
790 NW 107th Ave. Suite 200  Miami, FL 33172

www.caltrangroup.com

Conceptual Design

Page 19



 Walnut Creek
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
September 2023

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
WALNUT CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL 
YEAR 2022/2023 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT 
TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Walnut Creek Community Development 
District (“District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose special assessments 
upon the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an Amended 
Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE WALNUT CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 17th day of October, 2023 
. 
 

 

ATTEST: WALNUT CREEK 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 56



   Walnut Creek
  Community Development District

       Amended Final Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2022/2023

        October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



CALTRAN ENGINEERING DESIGN 
PLANS FOR THE TAFT VISITOR 

ENTRANCE TRAP MODIFICATION 
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 61



ALLSTATE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
5 YEAR RE-CERTIFICATION 

INSPECTION RESULTS & REPORT 
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 62



10/4/23, 8:58 AM Mail - Ronald Galvis - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADY2YmUzNmRlLTY3MWEtNGE5YS04NDc3LWExNmQzYmJmMzI3YwAQAH1rSQu1MBRKhEvLIUcw… 1/1

Re: Iguana Control/ September 2023 Bag Count Data for Walnut Creek CCD

Christy Brown <christy@iguanacontrol.com>
Wed 10/4/2023 8:15 AM
To:Ronald Galvis <rGalvis@sdsinc.org>;Gloria Perez <gperez@sdsinc.org>;Tori Shamy <tshamy@sdsinc.org>
Cc:Rick Torgerson <rick@iguanacontrol.com>

Good morning!

The total iguana bag count for the service period of  September 1, 2023 - September
30, 2023 for the Walnut Creek CCD/Lakes & Canals location was 136 (one
hundred thirty-six) iguanas.

The total iguana bag count for the service period of September 1, 2023 - September
30, 2023 for the Walnut Creek CCD/Taft Street Waterfalls location was 37 (thirty-
seven) iguanas.

Have a wonderful week!

Best regards,

Christy Brown
Administrative Assistant to Jennifer Altschuler
Iguana Control 🦎
Christy@IguanaControl.com
www.IguanaControl.com 
Phone (954) 398-4812
Fax (954) 200-6154

*Please leave your name, property address and a callback number on the voicemail.

Connect with Iguana Control | Facebook | Instagram | Twitter

Page 63

mailto:Christy@IguanaControl.com
https://mailtrack.io/trace/link/e269f046e9dbd3e1fb4e089ee128c67f806333bf?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.iguanacontrol.com%2F&userId=6713794&signature=7e9b2bc1e0fb11af
https://mailtrack.io/trace/link/1b95c614b32d6b57d8c6c3e7cced6de2c88053ff?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FIguanaControl&userId=6713794&signature=c6975985328ee86e
https://mailtrack.io/trace/link/83bb6518173ff22402dfb848f96294ac9a1430ea?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Figuanacontrol&userId=6713794&signature=f3f9645fe13bbf82
http://www.twitter.com/iguanacontrol


Estimate
Date

9/28/2023

Estimate #

2023-1082

Name / Address

WALNUT CREEK
7500 NW 20th St.
Pembroke Pines, FL 33024

Ship To

P.O. No. Terms

Due on receipt

TotalSubtotal Sales Tax (7.0%)

Description Qty Cost Total

DUALBEAM BARCODE READER FOR LONG RANGE VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION 1 2,065.00 2,065.00T
SHIPPING AND HANDLING 1 65.00 65.00T

DEFFECTIVE UNIT MUST BE SENT TO MANUFACTURE PRIOR TO PURCHASING
REFURBISH

$2,130.00$2,130.00 $0.00

Page 64



Estimate
Date

9/28/2023

Estimate #

2023-1083

Name / Address

WALNUT CREEK
7500 NW 20th St.
Pembroke Pines, FL 33024

Ship To

P.O. No. Terms

Due on receipt

TotalSubtotal Sales Tax (7.0%)

Description Qty Cost Total

1 1,442.00 1,442.00TREPLACE EXISTING CAMERA WITH NEW AXIS LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION CAMERA 
AT THE TAFT STREET RESIDENT ENTRY LANE

NOTE: THIS REPLACEMENT COST INCLUDES INSTALLATION USING EXISTING WIRING 
AND PROGRAMMING. A SEPERATE ESTIMATE WILL BE PROVIDED IF THERE'S A NEED 
TO RUN ADDITIONAL WIRING DUE TO DAMAGED CABLES, ETC.

$1,442.00$1,442.00 $0.00

Page 65



Estimate
Date

9/28/2023

Estimate #

2023-1084

Name / Address

WALNUT CREEK
7500 NW 20th St.
Pembroke Pines, FL 33024

Ship To

P.O. No. Terms

Due on receipt

TotalSubtotal Sales Tax (7.0%)

Description Qty Cost Total

1 1,442.00 1,442.00TREPLACE EXISTING CAMERA WITH NEW AXIS LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION CAMERA 
AT THE SHERIDAN STREET RESIDENT ENTRY LANE

NOTES: 
THIS REPLACEMENT COST INCLUDES INSTALLATION USING EXISTING WIRING AND 
PROGRAMMING. A SEPERATE ESTIMATE WILL BE PROVIDED IF THERE'S A NEED TO 
RUN ADDITIONAL WIRING DUE TO DAMAGED CABLES, ETC.

ONE LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION CAMERA MAY NOT BE ENOUGH TO CAPTURE THE 
LICENSE PLATES ON BOTH RESIDENT ENTRY LANES BUT WE'LL DO OUR BEST TO DO 
SO. A SEPARATE ESTIMATE WILL BE SUBMITTED IF A SECOND ONE IS REQUIRED.

$1,442.00$1,442.00 $0.00

Page 66



Walnut Creek CDD - Gates Systems Service Calls
June to September 2023

Date Description - Details
Amount 

Billed

06/04/2023
VISITORS ARM FELT - REMOUNTED - NO CHARGES, COVERED 
UNDER SERVICE AGREEMENT

0

06/05/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED.  06/01/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 05:05 PM 

225

06/05/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS STUCK IN THE OPEN POSITION. 
THE ARM WAS ADJUSTED AND LEFT OPERATIONAL....

225

06/20/2023 BAI HI ENDURANCE OUTPUT MODULE 350

06/20/2023
CONTROLLER BUTTON MALFUNCTION - NO CHARGES, COVERED 
UNDER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

0

06/20/2023
OUTPUT MODULE REPLACEMENT  - DISCONNECTION AND 
REMOVAL OF DEFECTIVE OUTPUT READER MODULE  - 
INSTALLATION OF THE NEW ONE

270

06/20/2023
THE BELT LOOSE ON VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS ADJUSTED.  
06/06/2023 TIME REPORTED 8:00 PM

225

06/29/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS CUT, REPAIRED AND REMOUNTED  
06/22/2023 TIME REPORTED 10:09 AM

150

06/29/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  06/27/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 9:15 AM

150

06/29/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  06/28/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 2:20 PM

150

07/04/2023
RESIDENT'S ARM BARRIER WAS REPORTED, THE TECHNICIAN 
WAS AT THE SITE AND THE ARM WAS ADJUSTED

225

07/04/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS STRAIGHTEN  07/02/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 2:24 AM

225

Page 67



07/07/2023
SHERIDAN RIGHT ENTRY ARM BARRIER WAS CUT AND 
REMOUNTED  07/05/2023 TIME REPORTED 12:25 PM

150

07/07/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REPORTED MALFUNCTIONING, 
THE TECHNICIAN WAS AT THE SITE AND ADJUSTED IT

225

07/17/2023
12' (NO INSTALL KIT) GREEN AND RED OR RED REPLACEMENT 
LIGHTED GATE ARM WITH LED STRIP

1032

07/17/2023
17' (NO INSTALL KIT) GREEN AND RED OR RED REPLACEMENT 
LIGHTED GATE ARM WITH LED STRIP

1092

07/21/2023 BAI HI ENDURANCE OUTPUT MODULE. 350

07/21/2023
BD LOOPS - 6X12 PREFORMED DIRECT BURIAL LOOP W/100' 
LEAD WIRE

195

07/21/2023
HARNESS FOR RENO BX-3, BX-4, AX2, AX2DL 11 PIN FOR 1 & 2 
CHANNEL LOOP DETECTORS

30

07/21/2023 LOOP SEALANT-BLACK 1 QUART TUBE 100

07/21/2023 NORTHSTAR 12-24V LOOP DETECTOR 120

07/21/2023
OUTPUT MODULE REPLACEMENT  - DISCONNECTION AND 
REMOVAL OF DEFECTIVE OUTPUT READER MODULE  - INST...

370

07/21/2023
SHERIDAN LEFT OPEN LOOP REPLACEMENT LABOR:  - SAW CUT 
PAVERS FOR LOOP  - GROUND LOOP INSTALLATION

1800

07/24/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  07/23/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 8:18 PM

225

07/24/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REPLACED  07/21/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 6:14 PM

225

07/28/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  07/27/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 8:58 PM

225

07/31/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  07/28/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 07:23 PM

225

07/31/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  07/29/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 12:07 PM

225

Page 68



07/31/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  07/29/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 12:07 PM

225

08/06/2023
RESIDENTS SIDE GATE REPORTED NOT WORKING - NO CHARGES, 
COVERED UNDER SERVICE AGREEMENT

0

08/07/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  08/03/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 3:45 PM

150

08/07/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  08/05/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 12:20 PM

225

08/07/2023
VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REPORTED BY SECURITY GUARD  
08/02/2023 TIME REPORTED 2:48 PM  REMOUNTED

150

08/11/2023
SHERIDAN RIGHT ENTRY GATE ARM BARRIER WAS HIT AND 
REMOUNTED  08/09/2023 TIME REPORTED 5:42 PM

225

08/11/2023
TAFT 1st RESIDENT ARM WAS REMOUNTED  08/10/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 5:24 PM

225

08/17/2023
TAFT VISITOR ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  08/16/2023 
TIME REPORTED 3:20 PM

150

08/31/2023
SHERIDAN RIGHT ENTRANCE ARM WAS REMOUNTED  
08/28/2023 TIME REPORTED 9:49 PM

225

08/31/2023
TAFT VISITOR ARM WAS REMOUNTED  08/29/2023 TIME 
REPORTED 3:07 PM

150

09/04/2023
TAFT VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  08/30/2023 
TIME REPORTED 1:33 PM

150

09/07/2023
VISITORS ENTRANCE ARM REMOUNTED (UPS TRUCK) NO 
CHARGES, COVERED UNDER SERVICE AGREEMENT

0

09/07/2023
VISITORS ENTRANCE ARM REMOUNTED - NO CHARGES, 
COVERED UNDER SERVICE AGREEMENT

0

09/07/2023
SHERIDAN WEST RESIDENT ENTRANCE ARM BARRIER WAS 
REMOUNTED  09/04/2023 (LABOR DAY)

225

09/07/2023
TAFT VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  09/01/2023 
TIME REPORTED 8:28 PM

225

Page 69



09/07/2023
TAFT VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  09/02/2023 
TIME REPORTED 2:02 AM

225

09/08/2023
TAFT VISITOR'S ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  09/07/2023 
TIME REPORTED 2:33 PM

150

09/14/2023
TAFT RESIDENTS ARM BARRIER WAS REMOUNTED  09/11/2023 
TIME REPORTED 5:04 PM

225

09/18/2023 SHERIDAN LEFT ENTRANCE ARM BARRIER REMOUNTED 150

09/22/2023 LIFTMASTER MEGA ARM & MAT CONTROL BOARD - K79-60166 385

09/22/2023 SHERIDAN LEFT ENTRY CONTROLLER REPLACEMENT LABOR 300

09/22/2023
SHERIDAN LEFT RESIDENTS ENTRANCE ARM BARRIER WAS 
REMOUNTED  09/18/2023 TIME REPORTED 9:53 PM

150

Page 70



Site: Walnut Creek Community
7500 NW 20th Street
Pembroke Pines FL 33024

RE: Decorative Pole Replacement.

October 6, 2023 
Proposal 
6D23-123

6 1 5 1 P E M B R O K E R D 
H O L L Y W O O D , F L 3 3 0 2 3

M I A M I - D A D E ( 3 0 5 ) 6 2 5 - 2 60 0
B R O W A R D ( 9 5 4 ) 9 8 9 - 71 6 2

F A X ( 9 5 4 ) 8 9 4 - 03 3 4

E C 0 0 0 0 3 4 5 / E C 0 0 0 3 0 5 9

In accordance with your request, Tirone Electric, Inc. proposes to furnish all necessary labor, tools, materials and 
supervision for a complete and operational electrical installation to the above referenced project as per our on-site 
review and as per the following listed qualifications.

1) Supply and replace (1) decorative street light pole by Taft Street entrance using existing head.
2) Time for troubleshooting is not included in this quote.
3) Excessive loss of time due to delays of access to site will be billed at service rates.
4) Tirone Electric is not responsible for replacing landscaping or sod after removal and installation.
5) Permits and engineering fees are not included.
6) This quote is valid for 30 days from the date above.
7) All work to be performed Monday through Friday during normal business hours.
8) All material and labor are warrantied for 1year from date of install. Any damage due to Mother Nature 

or vandalism is not warrantied.

Our Contract price, for the above referenced project is:
Four Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Five Dollars, Taxes Included..………….…...…..$4,975.00 
TERMS: 50%upon signing and 50% upon completion.

Approved and Accepted:
The above prices, specifications and conditions are accepted. Tirone Electric, Inc. is authorized to do the work as specified. Payments 
will be made as outlined above. In the event a lien or other legal measures are commended to secure payments on any portion of the 
contract sum, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive all costs and reasonable attorney fees.

Signature Printed Name and Title PO/Date

Respectfully submitted,

Ralph Bombardiere
Service Manager

Page 71



Page 72



 

Walnut Creek CDD Facts 

SEPTEMBER 1ST 2023 – SEPTEMBER 30TH 2023 

11,535 Overall Recorded Entries  

• 1,614 by QR Invites 

• 1,091 Residents, down by 266. 

3,209 Visitors processed by the virtual guard 

This averages out to… 
• 412 visitors per day 

• 17 visitors per hour 

• 1 visitor every 3.5 minutes 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 73



 

Walnut Creek CDD Facts 

CENSUS 

590 Units have/are using the new App (UP 3) 

387 Units are not using the new App (DOWN 3) 

3,294 Total Residents in the system  (DOWN 7) 

2,664 Total Residents Vehicles in the system (UP 28) 

5,068 Total Permanent Visitors in system (UP 15) 

 

We appreciate everyone’s continued feedback & support. 

 

Page 74



1 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   District Manager  
 
FROM:  Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.  

District Counsel  
 
DATE:   June 6, 2023   
 
RE:   Required Ethics Training   
 

 
On May 24, 2023, the Governor signed CS/HB 199 into law as Chapter 2023-121, Laws of 

Florida.  Section 112.3142, Florida Statutes, requires that specified constitutional officers, elected 
municipal officers, and commissioners complete four (4) hours of ethics training annually.  This 
requirement is noted on page 1 of the Form 1, Statement of Financial Interests.  This legislation 
provides that beginning January 1, 2024, elected and appointed commissioners of community 
redevelopment agencies and local officers of independent special districts are now required to 
complete four (4) hours of ethics training annually. The training must address, at a minimum, s. 8, 
Art. II of the Florida Constitution (ethics for public officers and financial disclosure), the Code of 
Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, and the Florida Public Records Law and Open Meetings 
laws. The legislation specifically provides that this training requirement may be satisfied by 
completing a continuing legal education class or other continuing professional education class or 
seminar if the required subject matter is covered therein. 

 
For current supervisors and officers, it is recommended that this training requirement be 

completed by July 1, 2024, so that the supervisor or officer can verify compliance with the required 
training on his or her Form 1, Statement of Financial Interests (2023).  Elected local officers of 
independent special districts that assume office on or before March 31st must complete annual 
ethics training by December 31st of the year the term begins; however, if the term starts after March 
31st, the officer is not required to complete the required ethics training until December 31st of the 
following year. The Legislature intends for those elected officers to receive the required training 
as close as possible to the date that he or she assumes office. The chart below can be used as a 
reference: 

 
Date elected or appointed Annual Training Completed By 

Current Officer/Supervisor 
 

December 31, 2024 
(recommend completion by 

July 1, 2024) 
January 1 – March 31, 2024 December 31, 2024 

April 1 – December 31, 2024 December 31, 2025 

 
The legislation also amends Section 112.313(a), Florida Statutes, clarifying the conflicts 

exception for public officers or employees of water control districts (Chapter 298, Florida Statutes) 

Page 75



2 
 

or a special tax districts created by general (i.e. community development districts) or special law 
and which is limited specifically to constructing, maintaining, managing, and financing 
improvements in the land area over which the district has jurisdiction.  Employment with or 
entering into a contractual relationship with a business entity is not prohibited and is not deemed a 
conflict per se; however, conduct by such officer or employee that is prohibited by or otherwise 
frustrates the intent of Section 112.313(7), Florida Statutes, including conduct that violates 
subsections (6) (misuse of public position) and (8) (disclosure of information not otherwise 
available to the public for personal benefit) thereof is deemed an impermissible conflict of interest.  

 
For convenience, we have included a copy of the legislation referenced in this 

memorandum.   We request that you include this memorandum as part of the agenda packages for 
upcoming meetings of the governing boards of those special districts in which you serve as the 
District Manager and this firm serves as District Counsel.   You can expect our traditional 
legislative memorandum in the coming weeks, where we will summarize other legislation from the 
2023 Legislative Session relevant to special districts. 

Page 76



CHAPTER 2023-121

Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 199

An act relating to ethics requirements for officers and employees of special
tax districts; amending s. 112.313, F.S.; specifying that certain conduct by
certain public officers and employees is deemed a conflict of interest;
making technical changes; amending s. 112.3142, F.S.; requiring certain
ethics training for elected local officers of independent special districts
beginning on a specified date; specifying requirements for such training;
providing an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

Section 1. Subsection (7) of section 112.313, Florida Statutes, is amended
to read:

112.313 Standards of conduct for public officers, employees of agencies,
and local government attorneys.—

(7) CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR CONTRACTUAL RELATION-
SHIP.—

(a) No public officer or employee of an agency shall have or hold any
employment or contractual relationship with any business entity or any
agency which is subject to the regulation of, or is doing business with, an
agency of which he or she is an officer or employee, excluding those
organizations and their officers who, when acting in their official capacity,
enter into or negotiate a collective bargaining contract with the state or any
municipality, county, or other political subdivision of the state; nor shall an
officer or employee of an agency have or hold any employment or contractual
relationship that will create a continuing or frequently recurring conflict
between his or her private interests and the performance of his or her public
duties or that would impede the full and faithful discharge of his or her
public duties.

1. When the agency referred to is that certain kind of special tax district
created by general or special law and is limited specifically to constructing,
maintaining, managing, and financing improvements in the land area over
which the agency has jurisdiction, or when the agency has been organized
pursuant to chapter 298, then employment with, or entering into a
contractual relationship with, such business entity by a public officer or
employee of such agency is shall not be prohibited by this subsection or be
deemed a conflict per se. However, conduct by such officer or employee that
is prohibited by, or otherwise frustrates the intent of, this section, including
conduct that violates subsections (6) and (8), is shall be deemed a conflict of
interest in violation of the standards of conduct set forth by this section.

1
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

Page 77



2. When the agency referred to is a legislative body and the regulatory
power over the business entity resides in another agency, or when the
regulatory power which the legislative body exercises over the business
entity or agency is strictly through the enactment of laws or ordinances, then
employment or a contractual relationship with such business entity by a
public officer or employee of a legislative body shall not be prohibited by this
subsection or be deemed a conflict.

(b) This subsection shall not prohibit a public officer or employee from
practicing in a particular profession or occupation when such practice by
persons holding such public office or employment is required or permitted by
law or ordinance.

Section 2. Paragraphs (d) and (e) of subsection (2) of section 112.3142,
Florida Statutes, are redesignated as paragraphs (e) and (f), respectively,
present paragraph (e) of that subsection is amended, and a new paragraph
(d) is added to that subsection, to read:

112.3142 Ethics training for specified constitutional officers, elected
municipal officers, and commissioners of community redevelopment agen-
cies, and elected local officers of independent special districts.—

(2)

(d) Beginning January 1, 2024, each elected local officer of an indepen-
dent special district, as defined in s. 189.012, and each person who is
appointed to fill a vacancy for an unexpired term of such elective office must
complete 4 hours of ethics training each calendar year which addresses, at a
minimum, s. 8, Art. II of the State Constitution, the Code of Ethics for Public
Officers and Employees, and the public records and public meetings laws of
this state. This requirement may be satisfied by completion of a continuing
legal education class or other continuing professional education class,
seminar, or presentation, if the required subject matter is covered by such
class, seminar, or presentation.

(f)(e) The Legislature intends that a constitutional officer, or elected
municipal officer, or elected local officer of an independent special district
who is required to complete ethics training pursuant to this section receive
the required training as close as possible to the date that he or she assumes
office. A constitutional officer, or elected municipal officer, or elected local
officer of an independent special district assuming a new office or new term
of office on or before March 31 must complete the annual training on or
before December 31 of the year in which the term of office began. A
constitutional officer, or elected municipal officer, or elected local officer of
an independent special district assuming a new office or new term of office
after March 31 is not required to complete ethics training for the calendar
year in which the term of office began.

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2023.

Ch. 2023-121 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2023-121

2
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

Page 78



Approved by the Governor May 24, 2023.

Filed in Office Secretary of State May 24, 2023.

Ch. 2023-121 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2023-121

3
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

Page 79


	Walnut Creek Community Development District - October 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	September 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Financial Update
	Accept and Receive Annual Engineer’s Report
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget
	Caltran Engineering Design Plans for the Taft Visitor Entrance Trap Modification
	Allstate Resource Management 5 Year Re-Certification Inspection Results & Report
	Iguana Control Reports
	Consider Approval of Regions Est. 2023-1082 for Refurbishing of Damaged Dualbeam Barcode Reader
	Consider Approval of Regions Est. 2023-1083 for High-Def Tag Reader Camera at Taft Street .Resident Entrance
	Consider Approval of Regions Est. 2023-1084 for High-Def Tag Reader Camera at Sheridan Street Resident Entrance
	Region’s Security Gate System Maintenance/Repairs Spreadsheet
	Consider Approval of Taft Entrance Median Light Post Replacement
	Security Report
	District Counsel Update on the 2023 Required Ethics Training




